ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
JO NT MEETI NG
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
HOUSE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
Anchor age, Al aska
August 18, 2015
1:38 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

SENATE JUDI Cl ARY

Senator Lesil McQiire, Chair
Senat or John Coghill, Vice Chair
Senator Bill W el echowski

HOUSE JUDI ClI ARY

Representative Gabrielle LeDoux, Chair
Representative Ws Keller, Vice Chair
Representati ve Neal Foster
Representati ve Bob Lynn
Representative Charisse Ml lett
Representative Matt C aman
Representati ve Max Gruenberg
Representative Kurt O son

VEMBERS ABSENT
SENATE JUDI ClI ARY

Senator Ma Costello
Senat or Peter M cciche

HOUSE JUDI Cl ARY

Al'l nmenbers present
OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Senator Johnny Ellis
COW TTEE CALENDAR

PRESENTATI ON: PRI SON COSTS AND REFORM  PERSPECTI VES FROM THE
LOVER 48

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -1- August 18, 2015



W TNESS REG STER

ZCE TOMNS, Manager

State Policy Work on Adult Sentencing and Corrections

Public Safety Performance Project

The Pew Charitable Trusts

Washi ngton, D.C.

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided an overview of the Pew Charitable
Trusts' work on the Public Safety Performance Project in various
st at es.

JAY NEAL, Executive Director

CGeorgia Governor's Ofice of Transition, Support, and Reentry

Atl anta, Ceorgia

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided an overview of Georgia' s efforts
related to crimnal justice and sentencing reform

KENNY ELLI'S, Legislative Liaison

The O fice of the Lieutenant Governor of M ssissippi

Jackson, M ssi ssi ppi

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided an overview of Mssissippi's
efforts related to crimnal justice and sentencing reform

RON GORDON, Executive Director

Ut ah Commi ssion on Crimnal and Juvenile Justice

Salt Lake Gty, Utah

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided an overview of Utah's efforts
related to crimnal justice and sentencing reform

SENATOR GERALD MALLOY

Sout h Carolina Legislature

Col unmbi a, South Carolina

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided an overview of South Carolina's
effort related to crimnal justice and sentencing reform

TERRY SCHUSTER, Senior Associ ate

Public Safety Performance Project

The Pew Charitable Trusts

Washi ngton, D.C.

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided an overview of the Al aska
Department of Corrections prison popul ati on data.

DI ANE CASTO, Deputy Conmi ssioner

Al aska Departnment of Corrections
Juneau, Al aska

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 2- August 18, 2015



PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Addressed the Al aska Departnent of
Corrections' efforts related to recidivismreduction and reentry
pr ogr anm ng.

JUSTI CE ALEX BRYNER, Retired Al aska Supreme Court Justice and
Chair of the Alaska Crimnal Justice Conm ssion

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided an overview of the Alaska Crim nal
Justice Comm ssion.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:38: 18 PM

CHAIR LESIL MCGQU RE called the joint neeting of the Senate and
House Judiciary Standing Commttees to order at 1:38 p.m
Present at the <call to order were Senators W elechowski,
Coghill, and McGQuire; and Representatives Keller, Foster, Lynn,
MIllet, daman, G uenberg, O son, and LeDoux.

PRESENTATI ON: PRI SON COSTS AND REFORM PERSPECTI VES FROM THE
LONER 48

CHAI R MCGUI RE announced t he busi ness before the committee is to
hear a presentation on prison costs and refornms fromthe
perspective of states in the Lower 48.

1:38:55 PM

ZOE TOMS, Manager, State Policy Wrk on Adult Sentencing and
Corrections, Public Safety Performance Project, the Pew
Charitable Trusts (Pew), Washington, D.C., explained that the
presentation wll consist of providing context around the
national trends on sentencing corrections that brings Pew to the
conversation and will help Alaska wth its current engagenent in

justice reinvestnent.

M5. TOMS said the presentation includes four |eaders from four
different states who will share sone of their experiences wth
crimnal justice reform and sentencing corrections reform She
expressed hope that the committee nenbers can extract sone
| essons that wll be relevant for the work in Alaska. She
identified the four |eaders as follows:

e Jay Neal, Drector of the Ceorgia Governor's Ofice of
Transition, Support, and Reentry. Director Neal was a state
representative at the tinme when Georgia took on its
crimnal justice reformeffort several years ago.

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 3- August 18, 2015



e« Ron Gordon, Executive Director of the Uah Conmm ssion of
Crimnal Juvenile Justice and senior staff to the Governor
of Ut ah.

* Kenny Ellis, with the Ofice of the Lieutenant Governor in
M ssi ssi ppi .

e Senator Cerald Mlloy, Judiciary Chair 1in the South
Carolina Senate and helped with reform efforts in South
Car ol i na.

M5. TOMS stated that the four |eaders conme from very different
states that cane to address reform for a variety of reasons. She
said the |eaders will each speak about what brought their state
to the reformi ssue.

1:40: 48 PM

She said she wll provide data findings that brought Pew to
address sentencing reform She explained that 10 years ago Pew
started the Public Safety Perfornmance Project. Pew was

interested in the growmng trend of incarceration in the United
States and the poor returns on investnent that states were
getting in terns of public safety outcones.

She said there were two trends that Pew focused on in its
research and its technical assistance. The first trend pertains
to the remarkable growh in the use of prisons and jails. By
2008, 1 in 100 Anerican adults were in jail or prison, 1 in 31
adults were wunder sone form of correctional control: jail,
prison, probation, parole, or supervision. She said the growth
was comng at a fairly extraordinary taxpayer expense. She
reported that in 1997, total state corrections budgets were $23
billion and today the total is $54 billion. She affirmed that
there was a real leap up in the anount of noney that states were
spending and taxpayers were spending on prisons and other
correctional programs. She remarked that all of the correctional
spending was getting a low return on investnment in ternms of
recidivism outcone. She said policynakers were al arned when Pew
found that within 3 vyears of exiting state prisons the
recidivismrate was over 40 percent.

1:43: 03 PM

She said the high correctional costs and |low returns that
captured the attention of econom sts, crimnologists, and state
policymakers. This led to the second trend of states com ng up
with solutions to head in a different direction. The hope was to
do nore with | ess, nake cost effective choices about who goes to
prison, how long inmates stay, and determ ne outconmes sought in
terns of recidivism

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -4- August 18, 2015



M5. TOMS reveal ed that correctional science now has a |arge and
robust body of research that offers assistance in understanding
what works to change behavior. She said states have applied the
correctional science research to state practices and policies.
She remarked that a diverse group of states is pursuing justice
reformand strategies across the country, including Al aska.

She set forth that all of the work done by states that have
pursued reform has led to a new trend. She said for the first
time, the prison population began to dip downwards in 2008. She
admtted that the dowward trend is hard to define as either
nmonmentary or sustainable. She noted that the prison population
decl i ne has been acconpanied by a decline in crine as well. She
stated that getting nore public safety for less is a win-wn
that will hopefully continue over the com ng years and decades.

CHAIR LEDOUX called attention to a graph that showed the
incarceration rate increase for inmates incarcerated under state
and federal jurisdiction from 1925 to 2008. She stated that the
graph is absolutely astounding. She asked if the prison growth
is due to nore |l aws on the books.

M5. TOMS agreed that there are a lot nore |laws on the books
where both the nunber of |aws and penalties have increased. She
said state and federal policymakers have expanded crim nal
statutes where m sdeneanors are felonies, aggravated felonies
instead of felonies, degree of class is noved up, and the
penalty ranges are changed. She specified that penal ty
enhancements and prison has reduced crine if targeted on
serious, violent, and repeat offenders. She asserted that the
effects from prison on lower |evel offenders can actually be
crimnogenic and possibly make them nore likely to commt future
crinmes. She summarized that states are |ooking at whether or not
they are targeting the right kinds of offenders.

1:46: 22 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX asked what would happen if laws were rewitten to a
presunptive based upon 1925 I|laws. She specified that an
aggravator exception to a particular law would have to nake
sense.

M5. TOMWNS replied that sonme states are doing a little bit of
what Chair LeDoux suggested. She specified that states are not
picking a nonent in tine to go back to and erasing the books

She said states are interrogating policies with fresh eyes to
review their outconmes. She opined that states went down a prison

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 5- August 18, 2015



building path in the 1970s based upon a consensus that nothing
wor ked to change crim nal behavior and | ocking people up was the
only alternative. She conceded that the field of crimnology in
the 1970s had not addressed questions about what can stop cring,
what can prevent crinme, what kind of policing works, what kind
of comunity <corrections prograns work, and what kind of
treatment works. She revealed that crimnology currently has a
robust and strong body of research that tells us what does and
does not work. She summarized that the intent is to go back to
sonme of the previous policies, but to also include new research
about what works to prevent crinme and reoffending.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if the incarceration graph
presented to the conmttee was based upon a percentage of
popul ation. He said the nation's population in 1925 was a | ot
| ess.

M5. TOMS replied that the incarceration rate was approximately
2.3 mllion adult Anmericans behind bars in 2013. She stated that
she will follow up with Representative Guenberg regarding the
graph's scale regarding the incarceration rates based upon the
popul ation in 1925.

1:49:16 PM
CHAIR MCGUI RE asked if Pew had taken into account a point at
whi ch the states began to deinstitutionalize the nmentally ill.

M5. TOMWMS replied a significant proportion of the offenders
behind bars are struggling with nental health disorders. She
asserted that a pretty big research consensus indicates that
deinstitutionalization had a pretty big role in prison grow h.

CHAIR MCGUI RE expressed appreciation for M. Towns' response

She said she recently attended a roundtable with | awmakers from
western states and every state cited one of the |[|argest
percentages of those incarcerated were nentally ill. She said
nmentally ill incarcerations are not just an Al askan problem She
sunmari zed that the roundtable discussion centered on the fact
that western states deinstitutionalized the nentally ill and
went to comunity health nodels. She renmarked that as states
have gone into deficit spending, funding for community health
prograns has been cut and prisons have becone the de facto
institution again for the nentally ill. She said prisons are not
backed wup wth the kind of training that nental health
institutions have. She stated that she | ooked forward to hearing
from the upcomng testifiers regarding how their states have
addressed the nmentally ill popul ati on percentage.

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 6- August 18, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN asked if the prison population graph the
commttee was referencing is actually a per capita statistic
rather than a total popul ation.

M5. TOMWNS answered yes.

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN asked if there was a sem nal point between
1925 and 2008 where a significant wuptick occurred in prison
popul ati ons.

M5. TOMS answered that the 1970s showed a significant increase
in addition to the 1980s and 1990s due to federal and state
approaches to drug crine.

1:52:42 PM

JAY NEAL, Executive Director, Georgia Governor's Ofice of
Transition, Support, and Reentry, Atlanta, Georgia, noted that
he served in the state legislature for about nine years. He
detailed that Georgia' s prison population was roughly 56,000
when the state began its Justice Reinvestnent Initiative (JRI)
in 2011. He added that Pew provided technical assistance for
JRI. He revealed that in addition to the 56,000 inmate
popul ation in 2011, 6,000 sentenced inmates were in county jails
awaiting an open bed. He noted that GCeorgia was spending
approximately $25 mllion a year for county subsidies to house
sentenced inmates in county jails. He revealed that Georgia
currently has a prison population of 53,000 and the jail backl og
has been elimnated. He detailed that in FY15 Georgia spent
$6,000 on jail subsidies rather than $25 mllion. He sunmarized
that in a mtter of 3 years, Ceorgia elimnated its inmte
backl og of 6,000 and saved the state roughly $25 mllion in
subsidies for county jails for housing state sentenced inmates.

1:54: 27 PM
MR. NEAL revealed that he has a mnisterial background and was
never involved in politics until he ran for a state

representative seat in 2002. He said his philosophy and feelings
about addiction and the crimnal element was very simlar to
many others' views that led to the steep incarceration rate
increase in the 1980s into the 2000s. He noted that when the
federal governnent passed "Truth in Sentencing in State Prisons”
in the 1990s along with encouraging and incentivizing states to
pass the three-strikes |law, Georgia decided to do one better and
passed a two-strikes law. He detailed that while the nationa
incarceration rate was 1 in 31 adults, Georgia was 1 in 13 and
the state continued to nove in a direction where people

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -7- August 18, 2015



referenced Georgia as a penal colony. He said his canpaign
promse was to work toward better education, better business
environnent, and a safer comunity to raise children. He
admtted that he enbraced Georgia' s high incarceration rate at
the time and noted that he believed |onger sentencing was an
option if results were not being achieved.

1:57:48 PM

MR. NEAL asserted that nmental health and addiction go hand-in-
hand. He opined that one of the ironic characteristics of
addiction is that people will continue to do the sanme thing over
and over regardless of consequences that action brings, but the
state responds to addiction by trying to use consequences to
change addictive behavior. He revealed that one of the things
t hat happened to him over the course of his first years in the
state legislature occurred at the church he pastored. He noted
that nmen from a nearby recovery residence started attending his
church. He admitted that what he saw in the nmen from the
recovery residence was 180 degrees form what he always believed
about addiction. He said he could not understand the behavior of
men who |loved their famlies, but did not straighten up, get a
job, take care of their famlies, and do the right thing. He
detailed that the recovery residents were broken hearted and
big, strong nen who were in tears because they had failed their
famlies. He said he began to struggle with what he had al ways
bel i eved about addicti on.

He explained that he had an opportunity to begin to |earn about
the science of addiction and what it does to the brain. He said
he realized that his approach through the years did not have any
kind of scientific backing to it. He opined that the approach
wi thout scientific backing was treating individuals |Iike
crimnals who were not crimnally mnded, but were behaving
crimnally as a result of their addiction. He remarked that
incarceration of addiction driven crine was what was leading to
the crimnogenic factor that M. Towns talked about in her
presentation. He remarked that a person changes in prison and
does not conme back the sane, especially a person wthout a
crimnal mndset that is sent to prison due to their crimna
behavi or as a result of their addiction.

2:01: 00 PM

MR. NEAL explained that he began to | ook at what he needed to do
as a representative to try to change Georgia's direction. He
detailed that he becanme an advocate for recovery and served as a
director for a residential drug treatnment program in 2009,

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 8- August 18, 2015



ultimately leading to serving as the Director of the Governor's
O fice of Transition, Support, and Reentry (GOTSR)

He expl ained that Georgia began in 2011 with a bill to establish
a crimnal justice reform council wth the focus on |ooking at
sentencing and corrections reform He revealed that Georgia's
governor understood very clearly the need of addressing
i ndi viduals who are not crimnally mnded in a different way. He
noted that the governor was a forner prosecutor as well as a
former juvenile court judge. He added that the governor's son is
a Drug Court judge in the State of Ceorgia.

He detailed that Georgia began to look at how to take non-
crimnally mnded individuals who are caught up in addiction-
driven crinme and provide alternatives to address accountability
as well as what is driving the crimnal behavior. He reveal ed
that crimnal behavior goes away when an addict wthout a
crimnal mnd gets into recovery.

He explained that as Georgia began crimnal justice reform a
nunber of sentencing |aws were changed; that |led to individuals
who were involved in drug and property offenses, nostly due to
drug addiction, to be diverted from the prison system through
Accountability Courts, Drug Courts, Ment al Health Courts,
Veterans Courts, and Day Reporting Centers, while holding the
i ndi vidual s accountable in a very rigorous way. He asserted that
Ceorgia' s approach is not gentle or soft, but a rigorous program
that the individuals go through

He specified that a legislative package for crimnal justice
reform was introduced in 2012 wth the governor wanting
consensus. He revealed that Georgia s Speaker of the House,
Li eutenant Governor, Chief Justice of the Suprene Court,

Attorney GCeneral, mmnority |leaders of the House and Senate
joined CGovernor Deal in a press conference that introduced a
bill that set up the Crimnal Justice Reform Council. House Bil

1176 passed in 2012 with a unaninobus vote in both the House and
Senat e.

2:04: 02 PM

MR. NEAL said the governor turned his attention to juvenile
justice reform in 2013 and a conprehensive |egislative package
was passed unaninously in Ceorgia's House and the Senate. He
remar ked that CGeorgia' s approach to sentencing reform for adults
and juveniles has been conprehensive, but the governor asserted
that lasting inpact would require the state to address innmates
| eaving the prison system He detailed that 21,000 individuals

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -9- August 18, 2015



annually |eave Georgia's prison system and the intent was to
address what the state does to ensure that individuals
successfully return to their communities.

He detailed that the Georgia Council on Crimnal Justice Reform
was codified for a five year termwith an assignnent to address
reentry via GOTSR. He said GOISR manages a col |l aborative reentry
effort anong all departnents, agencies, and comunities. He
asserted that reentry is a community issue and problem that
requires conmunity involvenent for resolution. He reveal ed that
| egislation was passed in 2014 on the Ceorgia Prison Reentry
Initiative. He said the Georgia Council on Crimnal Justice
Reform continues to address adult and juvenile reforns. The
Ceorgia Legislature has commttees that continue to |ook at
oversight and neasuring reform outconmes while other commttees
ook at reentry. He remarked that voters have shown their
understanding of the value of reform efforts when three
| egislators that voted against reform in 2015 were ultimately
voted out of office.

He summarized that Georgia's reform initiative has been a
holistic approach that does not have a "silver bullet."” He
asserted that reform has been data driven from the start wth
technical assistance by Pew. He noted that M. Towns was
actually assisted Georgia during the very beginning. He said
reform continues to be data driven and one of GOISR s
responsibilities is to ensure that the justice reinvestnent
savings are being utilized on evidence based, community centered
prograns. He noted that the first year saw $17 mllion new
dol lars placed into comunity efforts.

2:07:39 PM

CHAIR MCGQUIRE asked M. Neal to discuss Ceorgia's altered
approach to offenders wth addictions and how the process
continues to be hard with severe penalties.

MR NEAL replied that Georgia tried a nunmber of things to
provi de an opportunity for individuals who were caught in drug
and property crinmes. He explained that every year approximtely
5,000 to 6,000 individuals were entering prison for the first
time with nonviolent drug and property offences; they are the
individuals that Georgia is trying to give opportunities to
t hrough Accountability Courts or the Daily Reporting Centers in
order to address the addiction that is driving the crimnal
behavi or.

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 10- August 18, 2015



MR. NEAL noted that Accountability Courts were initially cherry-
picking low risk and | ow needs offenders to assure success. He
said based on best practices research, low risk and |ow needs
of fenders where shown to be at higher risk froma rigorous court
setting. He revealed that Accountability Courts adopted
st andards where noderate and high risk offenders and high needs
of fenders are targeted. He revealed that Ceorgia currently has
100 Accountability Courts.

He explained that an Accountability Court is a lengthy and
detailed two year process where offenders neet regularly with a
staffing team He said offenders are held accountable, drug
tested on a regular basis, and required to get jobs. He
summari zed that opportunities are provided where interaction
with the court system does not inpact crimnal records upon
successful conpletion. He added that Georgia has done sone
things to deal with collateral consequences as well. He admtted
that the state is not where it needs to be with collateral
consequences, but significant progress has been nade.

2:10: 14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER comented that Accountability Courts may
be Georgia's |lead diversion tactic. He asked if GOISR has found
contractors or providers that offer treatnent prograns that work
and if there is a shortage.

MR NEAL replied that GOISR works wth community service
providers, the crimnal justice elenent of the Accountability
Courts. He detailed that nobst of the treatnment is provided by
community service providers that contract with Accountability
Courts. He added that additional community service providers are
needed.

He said one of the areas GOISR saw a need for was on the
juvenile justice side. He detailed that 25 percent of al
juvenile offenders receiving out of honme placenment were
m sdenmeanors for status offenses; a grant program was created
for comunities to address that group. He detailed that status
of fenses neant that an offense would not occur if the individual
was 21.

MR. NEAL said GOISR also found that many communities did not
have evi dence based community service prograns for juveniles. He
noted that evidence shows that juveniles are nore successful
when they receive services from the community they are from He
detailed that a grant funded program was set up and counties in
judicial circuits were invited to apply if they agreed to reduce

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -11- August 18, 2015



t he nunber of out-of-home conmmtnents by 15 percent. He reveal ed
that out-of-home commtnents were reduced by 62 percent in the
first year. He added that in just over a year, evidence based
community centered prograns for juveniles are in every judicia
circuit. He remarked that access for juveniles has been
i ncreased, but the state is not where it needs to be.

He said one of the things that Georgia has l|learned is that
crimnal justice reform is no just a one-shot policy change
approach. He asserted that believing that making sone policy
changes w il take care of all efforts noving forward is not
going to work. He detailed that Ceorgia' s reform effort is in
its fifth year and the state continues to press on with a |ot of
support fromthe legislature as well as the public.

2:14: 05 PM
CHAI R LEDOUX asked if mandatory treatnent is always required.

MR. NEAL replied that going to an Accountability Court requires
mandatory treatnment. He admtted that there are tines where
of fenders do not want to pay the price and choose prison instead
of the Accountability Court. He shared that many individuals
conpleting the Accountability Court process have said their
lives have been saved, famlies reunited, and a new |ease on
life was provided. He said Accountability Courts are rigorous
and mandatory treatnent is part of the process.

CHAIR LEDQUX asked for an exanple of a sentence that an
Accountability Court inposes.

MR. NEAL answered that nost Accountability Courts are pre-
adj udi cation and part of a plea agreenent where an individua

chooses the Accountability Court in order to avoid conviction

He added that sonme post-adjudications occur where an offender
ends up in Accountability Court after struggling under parole or
probation. He detailed that Accountability Court provides a high
risk and high needs individual with an opportunity to deal wth
their addiction that resulted in their addiction driven crine.
He specified that an individual going through a typical two year
process neets with their treatnent team on a weekly basis. He
added that the treatnent team s probation officer neets with a
judge on a weekly basis as well to review an individual's
progress and areas where inprovenent is needed. He reiterated
that the Accountability Court process is very intense. He
reveal ed that participants in the Accountability Courts becone a
community where a great deal of conradery is established between
menbers and peer accountability is provided as well.

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -12- August 18, 2015



CHAI R LEDOUX asked what specifically nakes the Accountability
Court process "rigorous."

MR. NEAL replied that each individual receives an individual
plan based on their own risk and needs. He explained that
Ceorgia's detailed and conplex assessnment shows very clearly
where an individual's risks and needs are. Individuals may
receive intensive out-patient substance abuse counselling,
ment al heal th assistance, education opportunities, or job skills
training. He asserted that a "one size fits all" approach
restricts opportunities to be successful.

2:18:49 PM

CHAI R MCGUI RE sai d she considers the diversion programin Al aska
to be rigorous when an individual is asked to give up their
addiction and be rehabilitated. She detailed that individuals
are required to submit to drug or alcohol testing and to rmake a
commtnment to their famlies and their lives to no |onger be
addicted. She said individuals that commt to the diversion
program have a high success rate, but the conmtnent is big. She
concurred that sonme offenders would rather go to jail than nake
t he conmi t nment.

MR. NEAL replied that conmmtnment involves changing so many
things that change is one of the reasons for success. He said
commitment is a holistic approach to the overall need of the
i ndi vi dual .

2:20:31 PM

KENNY ELLIS, Legislative Liaison, the Ofice of the Lieutenant
Governor  of M ssi ssi ppi , Jackson, M ssi ssi ppi , i ntroduced
hi msel f.

RON GORDON, Executive Director, Utah Comm ssion on Crimnal and
Juvenil e Justice, Salt Lake G ty, Uah, introduced hinself.

SENATOR GERALD MALLOY, South Carolina Legislature, Colunbia,
South Carolina, stated that he has been in the South Carolina
Senate since 2002 and was <chair of the Senate's reform
conmi ssi on.

MR. ELLIS revealed that Mssissippi had the second highest
incarceration rate in the US. prior to the state's crimnal
justice reform He said Mssissippi was spending astrononi cal
anounts on the M ssissippi Departnent of Corrections (MDOC) and
the state was sinply not getting a very good return on

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 13- August 18, 2015



investment. He detailed that the 10 years prior to reform
M ssi ssippi's appropriations had gone up nearly 50 percent while
the inmate population only increased by 4 percent. He said
something had to change due to the disproportion between NMDOC
spending and its inmate popul ati on.

He disclosed that Mssissippi is a very conservative state that
is primarily Republican. He remarked that |ooking at crimnal
justice reform issues by a Republican or conservative was
considered to be a bit taboo. He revealed that M ssissippi
decided to think "outside of the box"™ when Georgia's
conservative |eadership decided to approach crimnal justice
reform

He shared that as Mssissippi started digging into crimnal
justice reform the state realized that nore conservative
phi |l osophies applied. He said the state's froogle approach |ed
to a better return on investnent for the taxpayers' noney. He
revealed that through reforns, Mssissippi was able to cut the
budget by $266 million, enough to roughly cover the state's MDCOC
appropriation for one year.

He added that M ssissippi can now predict what its budgets wll
be as it noves forward. He noted that prior to reforns,
M ssi ssippi was unable to predict its yearly MDOC appropriation.
He revealed that M ssissippi would appropriate $300 mllion to
MDOC and the departnment would routinely require another $50
mllion to $60 mllion. He said appropriation instability did
not allow the state to accurately project its next fiscal year
for MDOC, the Departnent of Health, or anything that relying on
general fund doll ars.

He summarized that Mssissippi's prison inmate population is
dowmn 4,000 since the state attained consensus on a bill that
passed where reforns were enacted in July 2014.

2:24: 06 PM

CHAI R MCGUI RE said she appreciates the overview on M ssissippi's
conservative political context and the concern for how voters
would view crimnal justice reform She pointed out that M.
Ellis did not nention the state's consideration for the val ue of
human |ife and the rehabilitation of a person that has served
their time and society has chosen to forgive. She concurred that
addressing costs is inportant for |egislative bodies. She asked
if policies surrounding human |ife was taken into consideration
by M ssi ssi ppi .

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -14- August 18, 2015



MR. ELLIS answered yes. He said fromthe policy prospective, any
agency will be looked at from a nobnetary prospective, but NMDOC
deals with human lives. He detailed that NMDOC deals primarily
with young individuals that nmay have slipped up, sone due to
problenms with drugs. He said Mssissippi's goal is to go ahead
and truly correct the individuals that come to MDOC. He said
M ssissippi wants offenders to get the help they need, serve
their tinme, stay out when they get out, and to be productive
menbers of society.

2:26:01 PM
MR. GORDON explained that Uah had a couple of different
policies to di scuss once t he state set its reform

recomendations. He said one policy addressed saving noney by
i npl enenting good recomendations that maintained or inproved
public safety, the other addressed inproving the |Ilives of
people. He figured that fiscal savings would be nore persuasive,
but he found out that just the opposite was true. He detailed
that Utah's policynmakers had data to give them sone |evel of
confort that public safety would be nmaintained and the dialog
shifted to human lives. He noted that one Utah |egislator shared
a story where his business had been repeatedly broken into by a
criminal with a drug addiction and the |l egislator stated that he
was nore concerned with how to break the individual's cycles of
addiction and crinme. He stated that he knew a significant step
forward was made when the legislative discussion addressed
saving lives rather than the nunmber of prison beds and the
crim nal system budget.

He disclosed that Utah's Justice Reinvestnment Bill passed in
2015 and the legislation was the darling of the session. He
attributed the willingness to discuss different policies to the

data and research provided by the Pew Charitable Trusts, the
Crime and Justice Institute, and the Bureau of Justice
Assi stance. He said the Utah-specific data provided a |evel of
assurance that the state was heading in a good direction.

He detailed that Uah has a fairly low incarceration rate, about
half of the national average and the state felt that it was
doing great. He renmarked that U ah avoi ded sone of the crinmna
justice policy pitfalls that have been a thorn in the side of
other states. He admtted that Uah felt that the state did not
see a need for significant, conprehensive reform He asserted
that Utah currently takes pride in the fact that the state is
involved with the Justice Reinvestnent Initiative (JR).

2:30: 22 PM

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -15- August 18, 2015



MR. GORDON reveal ed that Utah began discussions about relocating
its aging 4,000 bed prison facility. He said the state got
nervous when the discussion for a new facility went from 4,000
to 10,000 beds. He admitted that Uah knew that the new facility
woul d eventually be filled with the state |ooking back asking
how it got to that point. He detailed that Utah's governor
called for a conprehensive crimnal justice policy review and
the task was charged to the Utah Comm ssion on Crimnal and
Juvenil e Justice (CCJJ) with assistance from Pew.

He revealed that CCJJ found that two thirds of Utah's prisoners
were in prison for probation or parole revocations, not for new
crimes, but for technical violations. He remarked that U ah was
tired of dealing with technical violators and the state did not
know what to do other than sending the individuals to prison
after the ninth violation. He said Uah was failing the
individual and the state by not supervising the technical
violators appropriately. He detailed that nmany of the reform
recomendati ons deal wth strengthening community supervision
and ending that cycle of recidivating. He said data showed that
Utah was not intentionally deciding to incarcerate people |onger
and longer, but the state was incarcerating low |evel drug
of fenders | onger and |longer. He detailed that people who did not
have a crimnal history and did not have prior felony
convictions were being sentenced to prison for |onger periods of
time. He admitted that Utah kept telling people that it takes a
lot to go to prison in the state; however, the data showed that
that is not always the case. He revealed that sone of Utah's
drug offenders go to prison with no felonies or one prior
felony. He stated that the data was not always pleasant to
receive, but the data was inportant in providing the foundation
for everything the state did.

2:33.20 PM

SENATOR MALLOY said he has been the Chairman for the Senate
Judiciary Committee in the South Carolina Legislature since
2002. He added that he is a lawer and a Denocrat from a rura
area in South Carolina.

He explained South Carolina's denographics and political party
affiliation as foll ows:

* Estimated population of 4.6 mllion.

e Each state senator represents 100, 000 peopl e.

* 46 senators in the South Carolina State Senate.
* 28 Republican senators, 18 Denocratic senators.

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 16- August 18, 2015



e 124 nenbers in the South Carolina House of Representatives.

e Approximately two thirds of South Carolina's House of
Representati ves are Republicans.

e Republicans are in all of South Carolina' s constitutional
offices, e.g. Governor's Ofice and the Departnent of
Agricul ture.

SENATOR MALLOY revealed that he was asked to chair a crimna
justice task force in 2006. He specified that the task force was
assigned to look at certain crimnal nmatters and the findings
revealed that the state needed to address sentence reform He
explained that he was asked to chair the Sentencing Reform
Comm ssion, a position that he thought was a setup to |let people
out of prison and he would ultimately be the scapegoat. He noted
that he was reluctant at first, but realized that a safe
community was inportant for enabling good educational natters
and econom c devel opnent .

He revealed that the Sentencing Reform Conmmission started as a
group simlar in mkeup to Alaska' s general assenbly. He
referenced an anal ogy, "Sonetinmes what we have to do is make
sure that we can solve the problenms that we can solve." He
asserted that the Sentencing Reform Commission is a problem
sol vi ng nechani sm

2: 36: 28 PM

He opined that the War on Drugs did not work and too many people
were incarcerated. He explained that South Carolina had 25,000
i nmat es when the reformlegislation was first introduced in 2010
and the b5-year projection was 28,000. He revealed that South
Carolina currently has 20,500 inmates, down 4,500 from 2010. He
added that the state was technically down 7,500 when conpared
against the projection for 2014. He pointed out that South
Carolina has realized real savings by closing three and a half
prisons. He noted that the governor that signed the bill in 2010
called the legislation the nost inportant that he had signed

but added that results would not be known for 20 years. He said
35 percent of the savings are avail able for reinvesting.

He explained that South Carolina' s sentencing reform involved
the state's three branches: | egi sl ature, executi ve, and
judiciary. He said reform consensus was non-partisan where the
"P'" in "politics" was taken out and put into "people.” He said
i ke Georgia, South Carolina passed reform [|egislation
unani nously in the Senate with only four "no" votes in the House
of Representatives.

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -17- August 18, 2015



2: 38: 36 PM

SENATOR MALLOY explained that South Carolina had a four-prong
approach to sentencing reform adopt commbn sense sentencing
ref orns, i mprove release policies, strengthen parole and
probation, and establish an ongoing oversight conmttee. He
noted that he is the Chair for the Sentencing Reform Oversight
Comm ttee and noted that the conmttee has a five year sunset.

He said the commttee had strong |aw enforcenent people that
addressed release nechanisns. He noted exanples for release
changes as foll ows:

e Senior citizen inmates that were thought to be nore docile
were provided with a nmethod of rel ease.

e Schedule-1 drugs were changed to provide for conditional
di schar ges.

He said the commttee brought a conglonerate of people to the
table and noted that victinmse were not forgotten. He added that
restitution was expanded and the amounts received by victinms was
increased. He pointed out that sonme mandatory mninuns were
taken out and probation and parole were addressed. He renarked
that the state ultimately realized that it did not have a system
prior to sentencing reform He said the South Carolina
Department of Corrections is working on nental health and nental
issues. He added that the state is also working towards Drug
Courts. He opined that there is no one-size-fits-all.

He reveal ed that African Americans account for 30 percent of the
state's inmate population. He said as an African Anmerican, the
way South Carolina incarcerates African Anmerican males is
reprehensible and inmmoral. He said training and diversity within
the | aw enforcenent comunity is needed.

He summarized that South Carolina's prison population is going
down and the state's crinme rate has gone down as well.

CHAIR MCGUIRE noted that Senator Malloy addressed diversity
trai ni ng. She reiterated a concern that Alaska has a
di sproportionate inmate population of African Anericans and
Al aska natives. She asked if South Carolina's refornms included
training for corrections officers, identifying nental health
i ssues, and rehabilitation for inmates incarcerated in a hard-
prison.

2:43:34 PM

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 18- August 18, 2015



SENATOR MALLOY answered no. He said the bill addressed saving
the Departnent of Corrections noney and then to end up wth
prograns that will help the departnent. He provided an overview
where the  bill addressed sentencing reform supervi si on
requi renents, and adm nistrative sanctions for people going back
to prison for technical vi ol ati ons. He stated that the
progranmm ng i ssue and not the warehousing issue within the South
Carolina Departnent of Corrections addresses Chair MQiire's
concerns. He sunmarized that saving noney provides nore noney to
be allocated towards prograns and politics is about resource
allocation. He remarked that the state wll be better off
allocating nore resources towards prograns. He said a
determnation has to be nade whether to pay to be a
rehabilitative and repentant society or a "lock 'em up" society.

MR. GORDON pointed out that Utah's reform package does address
the issue of providing additional assistance to those wth
nmental health disorders, both in the conmunity as well as in the
prison facility. He said a fundanental part of Utah's package
makes sure that everybody who goes into the crimnal justice
system has an evidence based screening and assessnent to
identify specific needs. He admtted that Utah was previously
treating crines and not people. He said additional funds have
been appropriated to identify specific needs and risk factors in
the community and within the prison facility. He detailed that
t he devel opnent of standards for treatnment has been nandat ed,
sonething that Utah had not previously done. He added that
provi ders now have to be certified and neet m ni num standards in
order to receive state funds.

2:46: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that Senator Malloy was a
Denocrat and a nenber of the state's mnority party. He asked
why, as a mnority nmenber, he was put in charge of the Ceorgia
Crimnal Justice Reform Council.

SENATOR MALLOY answered that South Carolina's legislature is
nore of a neritocracy where hard work pays dividends when
individuals mnimze thenselves for the greater good. He said
parti sanship was taken off of the table because reform was
research driven and evi dence based.

SENATOR MALLOY revealed that the third nost incarcerated crine
in South Carolina was driving wunder suspension where an
individual receives a six nonth mandatory sentence after the
third offense. He remarked that living in poverty or a |ack of
noney are reasons for the cycle of driving under suspension. He

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -19- August 18, 2015



added that 44 percent of South Carolina's incarcerated were non-
violent and in prison for less than 18 nonths. He said South
Carolina was |ocking up people that the state was mad at rather
than people who were bad. He summarized that the state has to
make certain to rehabilitate those that can be rehabilitated and
turn an individual froma tax burden into a taxpayer.

He asserted that nmental illness is an issue that South Carolina
has to address. He explained that by closing nore prisons and
saving substantial funds allows for nore noney to be placed in
prograns that handle nental health and rehabilitative issues in
addition to expandi ng Drug Courts.

2:50: 54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER thanked the presenters for conveying their
experience with prison reform He agreed that reform is a
continual process. He asked if any of the states had to
readdress sonething that required nore attention.

MR. ELLIS replied that M ssissippi strictly had to go back and
rework the reformbill's |anguage, there was no policy m stake.
He detailed that the original reform bill set up an oversight
task force that constantly nonitors data and policies. He said
the M ssissippi Departnent of Corrections has been conpiling
data. He added that a separate Reentry Council was also set up.
He noted that the Reentry Council is headed up by the Chief
Justice of the Supreme Court of Mssissippi and the federal
judge in Mssissippi. He concurred that reform is an ongoing
expense.

MR. GORDON stated that Utah's Justice Reinvestnent Report
identified areas that required further attention that were not
ready to be included in the state's JRI bill. He said Ilike
M ssi ssippi, Utah established CCJJ as an oversight conmmi ssion to
track every data point and report back to the |egislature.

2:54: 27 PM

SENATOR MALLOY stated that Representative Keller's question asks
where the reform prograns are going versus where they currently
are. He said South Carolina set up a Senate Oversight Conmittee
as well. He detailed that the commttee had a five year sunset
and is currently in the process of renewal. He explained that he
acts as a gatekeeper if sonmeone files a crimnal bill with a
mandatory mninmum the bill nust have a study that shows the
financial as well as prison inpacts. He noted that South
Carolina is not a "one size fits all" state and judges were
entrusted to decide w thout mandatory mninmuns. He detail ed that

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 20- August 18, 2015



the Senate Oversight Committee neets with the state's parole
board to review risk assessnent issues and inmates release
nunbers. He explained that the commttee is trying to put nodels
together that assess variable costs, nmarginal costs associated
with incarceration, and cost avoidance. He said based upon
reform legislation, the state has a 35 percent nodel where
savi ngs are recomended back to the general assenbly to possibly
be invested into supervision. He admtted that the financial
aspect involves 170 people from the legislature each tine and
reasonabl e peopl e do disagree, but he asserted that the state is
going in the right direction. He remarked that the reform
legislation is not perfect and he w shes the state would have
gone further.

SENATOR MALLOY set forth that Alaska can get a lot out of
sentencing reform particularly on drug crinmes, treatnent
matters, and conditional discharges. He remarked that he did not
know what Alaska's pretrial intervention is, but noted that
South Carolina received a cost avoidance report from C enson
Uni versity which addressed the financial inpact all the way down
to the nunber of children that were not place in foster care due
to the reform legislation. He said there is a lot of work that
can be done and a |lot of assistance that can be provided from
all around. He said sentencing reform takes buy-in from each and
every person that is evidence and research based. He asserted
that a state has to find its own drivers. He summarized that
South Carolina does not operate the way other states do and
Al aska has to find the issues that works for Al aska.

2:58: 15 PM

He noted that a U S. Senator from South Carolina told him that
the U S. House of Representative and the Senate are taking up
sentencing reform and pointed out that he questioned how
conservatives can argue agai nst reform based upon the facts.

CHAIR LEDOUX noted that Senator Mlloy pointed out that a
significant portion of South Carolina' s prison population was
made up of people who had traffic-related things like driving
under suspension where the person could not pay so that
basically the prisons were functioning alnbst as a debtors'
prison. She asked if every state can expect to be surprised from
a situation that Senator Malloy described due to the data from
Pew wher e peopl e actually knew about beforehand.

3:00: 03 PM
SENATOR MALLOY replied sonetinmes legislators do not have
political will. He said sonetines a problem can be recognized

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -21- August 18, 2015



but nobody does anything because a |egislator mght be perceived
as being soft on crine, even though the public sonetines does
not understand the issue. He asserted that the small things
matter and noted that the following occurred after reform
| egi sl ati on was passed:

* Individuals with DU related offenses were given an
opportunity for nonitoring where the person pays for
nmonitoring rather than the state.

* An ammesty period was provided so that offenders can pay
back their fines based on installnment.

e DW provides inmtes that are released with identification
for job applications rather providing a bus ticket to
nowher e.

He said the statistics did not reveal the issues, but a study
that put the statistics together allowed South Carolina to
address non-DU related offenses |ike incarcerating offenders
for driving under suspension.

MR. GORDON explained that Utah never did a deeper data-dive on
its drug offenders in prison. He admitted that U ah fought with
Pew on their data's accuracy, but ultinmately becane al armed that
the state did not know everything about its prisoners.

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN opi ned that the power struggle between the
three branches of governnment on the state and federal |evel had
led to mandatory mninmum |laws that essentially sends a nessage
that judges cannot be trusted to give the right sentence. He
asked if South Carolina has recognized that a little nore trust
must be placed into the judiciary where judges are allowed to
tailor the offense to the offender.

3:03: 09 PM
SENATOR MALLOY answered yes. He detailed that South Carolina may
be uni que because the general assenbly el ects judges.

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN noted that Al aska has a nerit based system
for judges through the governor rather than the |egislature.

SENATOR MALLOY detailed that South Carolina' s judicial selection
is a checks-and-balance process where the Judicial Meri t
Sel ection Comm ssion screens judges through the South Carolina
Bar Association and the public. He said three candidates are
sel ected and brought before the general assenbly. He remarked
that providing a judicial sentencing flexibility treats judges
responsi bly and the judges will respond responsibly in return

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -22- August 18, 2015



He asserted that providing judges with flexibility has worked
because the state's crine rate is down 8 percent.

3: 05: 27 PM

TERRY SCHUSTER, Senior Associate, Public Safety Performance
Project, the Pew Charitable Trusts, Washington, D.C, introduced
hi nsel f.

Dl ANE CASTO, Deputy  Conm ssi oner, Al aska  Depart nent of
Corrections, Juneau, Al aska, introduced herself.

JUSTI CE ALEX BRYNER, Retired Al aska Suprenme Court Justice and
Chair of the Alaska Crimnal Justice Conm ssion, Anchorage,
Al aska, introduced hinself.

MR. SCHUSTER stated that his presentation wll specifically
focus on what s driving the growh in Alaska s prison
popul ation and what future prison growh wll look like if

additional reforns are not nmde.

CHAIR MCQUIRE confirmed wth commttee nenbers that M.
Schuster's presentation is entitled "Alaska Prison Gowh
Drivers and Costs."

MR. SCHUSTER said Alaska's prison population has grown 27
percent in the |ast decade, a significant amount of growth over
a 10 year period. He set forth that his presentation exam nes
what has driven Al aska's prison population growh and helps to
identify area that my be worth examnation and policy
di scussi on.

He explained that his presentation breaks up Alaska' s prison
popul ation into three groups. He said the first group is the
pretrial population that accounts for a bit nore than a quarter
of Alaska's prison inmates. The second group is the sentence
popul ation that accounts for half of the inmates in Al aska's
prison that have been sentenced to a term of inprisonment. He
said the third group accounts for a little less than a quarter
of the population are the probationers and parolees who have
violated the ternms of their supervision.

MR. SCHUSTER referenced prison population changes that have
occurred between 2005 and 2014 as foll ows:

e Sentence offenders has grown 14 percent.
* Pretrial population has grown 81 percent.
* Probation and parole violators has grown 15 percent.

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 23- August 18, 2015



3:09:46 PM

He said the growth in the pretrial population can be attributed
to two things: nore people coming into prison pretrial and or
peopl e could be spending nore tine in prison during pretrial. He
specified that data has shown that fewer people are comng into
pretrial over the |ast decade, but people are staying in prison
for | onger periods of tine.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asserted that a very alarmng warning
si gnal Is people spending nore time incarcerated pre-
adj udi cat i on.

MR. SCHUSTER conpared |engths of pretrial stay between 2005 and
2014 as foll ows:

e 11,000 people were arrested and held pretrial for non-
vi ol ent m sdeneanor charges, accounting for nore than half
of the pretrial population in 2014.

« 75 percent of all of the pretrial prison adm ssions are
non-vi ol ent and vi ol ent m sdenmeanors in 2014.

* Non-violent msdeneanor defendants are staying 3 days
| onger.

* Violent m sdeneanor defendants are staying 7 days |onger.
* Non-violent felony defendants are staying 3 weeks | onger.
e Violent felony defendants are staying 1 nonth | onger.

He noted that non-violent msdeneanor defendants staying 3 days
| onger adds up when applied to thousands of detentions.

3:15:16 PM
REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN asked if the pretrial stay for felony
defendants is a reflection of how long it takes to get to tria
or to plea.

MR. SCHUSTER replied that he would be hesitant to agree wth
Representative Claman's statenment. He noted that the majority of
people comng into pretrial are m sdeneanor defendants and nore
than half are never released during their pretrial period. He
added that defendants with felony charges are nore likely to go
to trial and their stay may be attributed to pretria
negoti ations as well as higher bail dollar anpunts.

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN commented that as a policy matter, trying

to reduce the pretrial time for non-violent felonies and
m sdenmeanors shoul d be addressed.

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 24- August 18, 2015



MR. SCHUSTER replied Pew thinks that the length of stay during
pretrial is an area that the Alaska Crimnal Justice Conm ssion
shoul d address.

He stated that the sentence popul ation nakes up half of Alaska's
pri son popul ation; that population has grown 14 percent between
2005 and 2014. He pointed out that the nunber of people being
sent to prison was higher in 2005 than 2014. He explained that
adm ssions to prison for sentenced offenders is not what is
driving the growth, but the length of stay has increased. He
reveal ed that 6,500 people were sentenced to a term in prison
for a non-violent offense in 2014, accounting for 82 percent of
t he peopl e who were sentenced to prison.

3:19: 01 PM
CHAI R LEDOUX asked how many violent m sdeneanors pleaded to a
non-vi ol ent m sdeneanor in 2014.

MR. SCHUSTER replied that he did not have the information.

He addressed length of stay for non-violent felony sentenced
of fenders and revealed that length of stay has increased across

the board for all types of non-violent felony offenders. He
detailed that length of stay for property and drug offenders
increased by a nonth, length of stay for alcohol and public

of fenders increased by three nonths. He added that nultiplying
the increases by hundreds and thousands of cases adds up to a
| ot of prison beds that Al aska was not using 10 years ago.

CHAI R LEDOUX asked what a felony offense is for public order.

MR. SCHUSTER explained that a lot of the public order offenses
are weapons offenses where a felon is in possession of a weapon.
He added that he did not know if an aggravated m sdeneanor for
public order can becone a felony.

3:21:16 PM

He revealed that violent felony offenders are also spending
longer time in prison than in 2005. He specified that there are
two categories of violent felonies in Alaska: person offenses
and regi sterable sex offenses. He revealed that person offenses
are staying 17 percent |onger and sex offenders are spending 86
percent |onger. He explained that the length of stay was arrived
at by only looking at people who had been released and noted
that very long sentences of 40 years or |onger we not cal cul ated
because the individual had not been released. He admtted that

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 25- August 18, 2015



the length of stay calculation was conservative because the
| onger sentences were not taken into consideration.

MR. SCHUSTER summarized that a lot of low level offenders are
bei ng sentenced to prison. He added that the length of stay in
prisons has increased for both non-violent and violent felony
of fenders. He renmarked that the increase in length of stay has
been driving the state's growth in the sentenced popul ati on.

He addressed probation and parole violators and noted that data
was derived from a snap-shot conparison between July 1, 2005 and
July 1, 2014. He reiterated that the things that can contribute
to population growmh are people <comng into prison on
supervision violations and or people staying for |onger periods
of time for supervision violations. He explained that the data
was ascertained by |ooking at how many people are coming into
prison on probation and parole revocations. He detailed that
revocations were broken down into Ilength of inprisonnment
categories that was inposed: 0-7 days, 8-30 days, 1-3 nonths, 3-
6 months, 6 nonths to 1 year, etc.

3:24: 28 PM

He reveal ed that nore people received prison revocations in 2014
than in 2005. He detailed that the biggest growmh is in the 0-7
day's category due partially from the creation and expansion of
the Probation Accountability and Certain Enforcenent (PACE)
Program where people are going into prison on very short
revocation sanctions. He explained that the PACE Program focuses
on high risk offenders that are on probation and violations of
conditions lead to prison revocations. He noted that the PACE
Program al so captures people who are detained in prison while
awaiting their revocation hearing and the judge of the parole
board awards the tine served while being detained. He detailed
that the average person waits about a nonth prior to a
revocation hearing, but technically the person's prison
revocation is categorized as 0-7 days.

He pointed out that increases also occurred in all of the
revocation tinme period categories. He noted that a robust body
of research indicates that |onger lengths of stay for technical
vi ol ati ons goes agai nst reducing recidivismrates. He explained
t hat community supervision deals wth swft and certain
sanctions that are proportional to violations and is |ess
di sruptive to people's |ives.

CHAI R LEDOUX asked if those who are going in for revocations are
commtting other crinmes or just screwing up their parole.

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 26- August 18, 2015



3:26: 37 PM

MR. SCHUSTER replied sonetinmes it is both where people are
comng in on technical violations when new crimnal activity is
being investigated. He detailed that an individual wth a new
crime falls into the pretrial group and a person coming in on a
technical wviolation will fall into the supervision violators

gr oup.

CHAI R LEDOUX asked what good is parole after a person has served
their time in prison.

MR. SCHUSTER said an exanple of the use of parole applies to a
situation where a person is sentenced to 24 nonths of prison
with 22 nonths suspended. So the individual serves 2 nonths in
prison wth probation afterwards. He detailed that nost people
actually are released with sone period of probation already
attached to their sentence. He explained that sonetines people
who are released on parole end up being on both parole and
probation at the sane tine.

3:28: 05 PM
CHAI R LEDOUX asked what the difference is between parole and
probati on.

JUSTI CE BRYNER specified as foll ows:

Under Al aska |aw, probation happens when you have a
portion of a sentence that 1is inposed but it is
suspended that you don't have to serve, as long as you
are on good behavior and conmply wth conditions
i nposed by the court. If you violate those conditions,
you can have your probationary period unsuspended and
the remainder or portion of the remainder of your
sentence can be i nposed.

Parol e occurs when you are sentenced into prison for a
specific tinme. In serving your tine, if you serve your
time and get credit for good tine served, under the
parole provisions you get a certain anount of credit
for good tinme that shortens the actual sentence and
you can get rel eased before your actual nunber of days
are served. \Wen you are released you are released to
parole which neans, again you have to conply wth
conditions of service, you have to conmply with all of
the conditions of vyour parole which is just |like
probation there, and if you violate them you can be

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -27- August 18, 2015



taken back to the court and then the court can inpose
the rest of that sentence and you can be forced to
serve the rest of your unserved sentence.

3:30: 05 PM

CHAI R LEDQUX asked what would happen if tine served in prison
was strictly used and parole was done away with. She pointed out
that prisons are ending up with a significant nunber of people
who are going to prison for technical violations of parole
rather than for a new crine.

JUSTI CE BRYNER replied that an effective strategy for technica
violators, especially with low risk offenders, is to shock the
offender with a short stay in jail and probation rather than
unr easonably inmposing excess prison time. He explained that the
strategy lets the offender know to take their situation
seriously.

MR. SCHUSTER stated that there are also a lot of benefits to
communi ty supervision where people are comng out of prison to
have extra support and be held accountable when they are nost
likely to have sone trouble reentering the community. He noted
that Deputy Director Casto will address reentry efforts that the
Al aska Departnment of Corrections (DOC) is working on to nake
sure that during those nonents when people are transition from
prison that they have support in place and a plan for success.

MS. CASTO expl ai ned that she has been with DOC for a little over
two nonths. She noted that her background includes work in
heal th and social services: 20 years with the state and 17 years
in the non-profit sector. She said DOC is a huge and conplicated
system but not so different from health and social services
where DOC is just further down the continuum of care.

She revealed that DOC is putting a lot of effort into the issues
related to recidivism reduction and reentry progranmng. She
di vul ged that one of the reasons DOC Comnmi ssioner Taylor brought
her on was due to her experience working with conmmunities,
partners, establishing services, and doing case nmanagenent;
things that were not being done by the departnent. She pointed
out that many DOC staff nenbers questioned the hiring of a
person with a "social work" background. She asserted that she is
trying to change the departnment's term nology to address reentry
as "case nmanagenent."

M5. CASTO addressed Chair LeDoux's point and noted that the
departnment is focusing on what can be done to assist a person

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 28- August 18, 2015



rather than just holding them and saying that they are being
wat ched. She said the intent is to help guide and provide
services to assist with community entry in a positive way.

She said comng back from the other side for many of Al aska's
i nmat es who have been in the prison systemfor a long tine is a
real shock where friends, famly mnenbers, a honme, and job are
gone. She added that an individual may also be struggling with
subst ance abuse or a mental health situation.

3:35:31 PM

She explained that DOC s plan is to work with its community
partners. She detailed that DOC works strongly wth the
Department of Labor and the state's unions to do apprenticeship
prograns to train and provide good skills to inmtes prior to
rel ease. She added that DOC works with its partners in housing
and the Al aska Housing Finance Corporation to make sure inmates
have housing lined up prior to getting out.

She revealed that she was surprised at the nunmber of innate
cases with severe nental health or physical health problens. She
noted that she has been working for the last 15 years in nmenta
heal th and substance abuse and she was surprised by the severity
| evel .

She explained that DOC wll begin developing its partnership
with communities to address how inmates will be noved back into
the comunities. She specified that DOC has reentry coalitions
in four comunities: Fai r banks, Mat anuska- Susitna Vall ey,
Anchor age, and Juneau. She revealed that funding from the Al aska
Mental Health Trust will allow DOC to award grants to the four
coalitions to hire coordinators. She detailed that services wll
be devel oped to better lay out a plan so that returning citizens
do not go back to prison on technical violations or conme back to
a comunity just because they need a place to |live. She reveal ed
that during a recent prison tour that a sergeant from the
facility shared that a nunber of people will commt low |eve

crines just to return to prison in order to have a place to live
with meals and healthcare. She asserted that DOC nust do a
better job in providing better services on the outside than on
the inside in order to help people be successful.

MR. SCHUSTER explained that absent further reform Alaska's
prison population is expected to grow 27 percent and cost at
| east $169 million over the next ten years. He detailed prison
popul ati on projections wi thout further reformas follows:

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 29- August 18, 2015



e 1,400 additional prison beds will be required.
e Current prison bed capacity will be exceeded in 2017.
e 128 beds in a reopened facility will be exceeded in 2018.

* The cost to reopen a facility and transfer excess prisoners
to out-of-state facilities amunts to $169 nillion.

e Building a new prison would likely cost nore than $169
mllion, the Goose Creek facility cost $240 mllion to
bui | d.

3:41: 50 PM

He said CGovernor Walker, the Speaker of the House, and the
Senate President have cone together wth other |eaders and
agreed upon a process ained at curbing Alaska's future prison
growh in a way that is safe, protects public safety, and holds
of fenders accountable; they have charged the Alaska Crim nal
Justice Conmission (AJC) with devel opi ng a conprehensive package
of recomendations for reforns. He detailed that reforns would
be statutory and budgetary for the Legislature to consider
during the upcom ng | egislative session.

He said AJC is a diverse group of stakeholders that includes
| awmakers: Representative Keller and Senator Coghill. AJC is
al so conprised of |udges, | aw enforcenent nenbers, DOC s
commi ssioner, the attorney general, a public defender, an Al aska
native representative, an advocate for victins' rights, and a
representative for the Mental Health Trust Authority. He
detailed that over the past year, AJC has been hol ding neetings
and gathering testinmony from public hearings around the state.
He revealed that AJC will be holding additional public neetings
i n Fairbanks, Bethel, Nonme, Kotzebue and surrounding villages to
make sure peoples' voices are heard from renote and rural areas
as well. He added that AJC will be holding policy devel opnent
nmeetings during the fall and presenting a report to the
Legi sl ature i n Decenber.

3:43:51 PM
REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER said he appreciates AJC s open process to
get out to rural Alaska and the entire state.

CHAIR MCGQUI RE thanked the Pew Charitable Trusts for assisting
the state with data. She said she appreciated hearing from the
representatives from the different states on how they
i ncorporated Pew s data in turning things around.

JUSTI CE BRYNER t hanked the Pew Charitable Trusts for assisting
AJC and providing their technical expertise that allows the

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 30- August 18, 2015



commi ssion's process to be data driven. He asserted that Pew s
experience encourages the commssion to believe that it is doing
sonething that can succeed. He thanked the state's three
branches of governnent for agreeing to invite Pew. He expressed
gratitude to the Legislature on a bipartisan basis for adopting
SB 64. He specified that SB 64 gave AJC the authority to
undertake and conplete the process. He asserted that all AJC
menbers would agree that the Legislature's action was very
insightful and very tinmely.

CHAI R MCQUI RE thanked Senator Ellis, co-prine sponsor of SB 64,
for joining the commttee neeting. She thanked all House and
Senate menbers for their tine as well.

ADJ OURNVENT

3:45: 53 PM
The neeting was adjourned at 3:45 p. m

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 31- August 18, 2015



